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2021
52,833,007 99.2
433,070 0.8
53,266,077
( 5,846 ) 100-0
2021

( ) ( )

(%)

384,772 129.20| 49,713,331 137.31| 52,833,007 | 99.2

2021 10
42 10

1 US Ultra Bond CBT Bond Futures Sep 2021 24 .87
2 Japanese 10 Years Bond Futures Jun 2021 14.36
3 US Long Bond CBT Bond Futures Sep 2021 13.03
4 Euro BUND Bond Futures Jun 2021 11.59
5 Long Gilt Bond Futures Sep 2021 9.68
6 Euro-OAT Bond Future Jun 2021 9.57
7 Euro-BTP Bond Future Jun 2021 8.84
8 US 10 Years Note CBT Bond Futures Sep 2021 8.29
9 S&P 500 E-mini Index Futures Jun 2021 7.52
10 US 5 Years Note CBT Bond Futures Sep 2021 7.10

2021
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2020 2021
2021 31 60,869,252.54 6,681,009 108.04 11,858
2020 45,670,562.57 5,012,801 102.76 11,279
52,982,275.60 5,815,335 104.24 11,441
58,547,415.53 6,426,164 104.31 11,449
62,622,115.88 6,873,403 104.10 11,426
10 62,407,133.37 6,849,807 102.27 11,225
11 66,725,248.02 7,323,763 107.20 11,766
12 61,629,227.30 6,764,424 107.25 11,772
2021 60,869,252.54 6,681,009 108.04 11,858
59,756,425.04 6,558,865 106.24 11,661
59,709,166.80 6,553,678 106.97 11,741
56,664 ,158.56 6,219,458 107.24 11,771
53,266,077.14 5,846,485 107.28 11,775
2020 23 2021

8.0
2020 23 2021

100x +
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AHL

2021 1 31

2021 1 31
2,9 666,021 73,102
2,3,9 60,097,722 6,596,326
9 18,409 2,021
8,9 1,203 132
9 111,877 12,280
60,895,232 6,683,861
59 30,188 3,313
9 400,000 43,904
59 19,438 2,134
8,9 38,280 4,202
8,9 4,752 522
8,9 396 43
8,9 10,211 1,121
8,9 7,632 838
9 31,076 3,411
541,973 59,487
60,353,259 6,624,374

4 563,373 -

1 107.13 12
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AHL
2020 3 23 2021 1 31
2020 3 23
2021 1 31
450,393 50,423
3,258,328 357,634
3,717,721 408,057
8 261,369 28,688
8 62,258 6,833
8 61,296 6,728
5 57,230 6,282
5 54,543 5,987
53,721 5,896
8 47,801 5,247
8 3,983 437
8 3,797 417
605,998 66,514

3,111,723 341,543
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2020 3 23
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73,397,785 8,056,141

(16,156,249) (1,773,310)

3,111,723 341,543

60,353,259 6,624,374
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2020 3 23 2021 1 31
2020 3 23
2021 1 31
3,111,723 341,543
(67,432,001) (7,401,336)
11,052,000 1,213,068
(459,393) (50,423)
(3,258,328) (357,634)
(1,203) (132)
(111,877) (12,280)
(18,409) (2,021)
30,188 3,313
400,000 43,904
19,438 2,134
38,280 4,202
4,752 522
396 43
10,211 1,121
7,632 838
31,076 3,411
(56,575,515) (6,209,729)
73,397,785 8,056,141
(16,156,249) (1,773,310)
57,241,536 6,282,831
666,021 73,102
666,021 73,102
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2020 3 23 2021 1 31
AHL
2013 12 2
1l
Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited 2020 2

24
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands 190 Elgin Avenue, George
Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands

AHL ( )

MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd

2025 1 31
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Financial Position

Asal January 31, 2021
{Stared in Unired Stares doflars)

Maote Januvary 31, 2021

UsD
Assefs
Cash 29 i (121
Investments in Selected Fund 239 60,097 722
Subscriptions receivable 9 18,409
Prepaid Trustee Fees 8.9 1,203
Prepavments and other assets 9 111,877
Tuotal assets 60,895,232
Liabilities
Administration fees pavable 59 30,188
Due o broker 9 400000
Professional fees pavable 3.2 19,438
Distributor fees pavable 8.9 38,280
Fee Agent fecs pavable £9 4,752
Agent Member Company fees payable K9 3%
Manager Support Service Provider fees payable £9 10,211
Investment Manager fees pavahle 89 7.632
Other pavables 9 3076
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributahle to halders of
redeemable units) 541,973
Net assets attributable to halders of redeemable units 60,353,259
Nomber of units outstanding 4 563373
Met asset value per unit 107.13

See accompanying nales fo the financial statemenis
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Sutement of Comprehensive Income

For the period from March 23, 2020 (commencement of operations) to January 31, 2021
{Stated in [ nited States dofiars)

For the period from

March 23, 2020
{eommencement af
operations) to
Note January 31, 2021
L'sD
Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL:
Met realized gain on financial assels and liabilitics at fair value through
profit or loss 459303
Met change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profii or loss 3,258,328
Total net gains on investments 3,717,721
Operating expenses
Distributor Fecs 8 261,369
Manager Support Service Provider Fees b 62,258
Investment Manager Fees ] 61,296
Administration fees 5 57.230
Professional fees 5 54,543
Other fees 53.721
Fee Agent Fees 8 47,801
Agent Member Company Fees 8 3,983
Trustee fees 8 3,797
Total operating expenses 605,998
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from
aperations 3011723

See accompanying notes to the financial statemens.

109/218



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Changes in Nel Assets Attributable 1o Holders of Redeemable LUnils

For the period from March 23, 2020 (commencement of operations) o January 31, 2021
iStated in United Sties dodlars)

For the period from
March 23, 2020
{commencement of
operations) to
January 31, 2021
Ush

MNet assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the beginning of
the perind

Issue of units 73,397,785

Repurchase of units (16.156.249)
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units from
operations 3,111,723
Met assets attributable to holders of redeemable units al the end of the
60,353,259

period

See accompanying nofes fo the financicl statements.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Cash Flows

For the period from March 23, 2020 { commencement of ﬁpL']‘.lli[]I'lS.I o January 31, 2021
(Sreted in United Staves dollars)

For the period from
March 23, 2020
{commencement of
nperatinns) to

January 31, 2021
U'sD
Cash Mows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable w holders of redeemable units from
operations 3,011,723

Adjustments o regoncile increase in net assets aitributable to the holder of

units from operations to cash used in operating aetivities:
Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund
Proceeds from disposition of investment in the Selected Fund
Net realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through

(67.432.001)
11,052,000

profit or loss (459.393)
MNet change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and liabilites at
fair value through profit or loss (3.258,328)
Increase in prepaid Trustees fees (1,203)
Increase in prepayments and other assets (111877
Increase in subscription receivable (18.4009)
Increase in Administration fecs pavable 30,188
Inerease in due o broker 00 (W0
Increase in Professional fees pavable 19,438
Increase in Distributor fees payable 38280
Increase in Fee Agent fees payable 4.752
Increase in Agent Member Company fees payable KL
Increase in Manager Support Service Provider fees payable 10,211
Increase in Investment Manager fees payable 7.632
Increase in other pavables L0706
Net cash used in operating activities (56.575.515)

Cash Nows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemahble units
Payvment on repurchase

73,397,785
(16.156,249)

Net eash provided by financing activities 57,241,536
Nel increase in cash Bt (12 1
Cash at beginning of the period -
Cash at end of the perind Hh, 021

Kee accompeanying notes to the financial statemenis
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Notes o the Financial Statements

For the period from March 23, 2020 (commencement of operations) o January 31, 2021
{Sreted in United States dollars)

1. Incorpoeration and background information

Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smant Leverage Strategy Fund (the “Series Trust”™} is a series
trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (the ~Trust™). an open-cnded umbrella unit trust
constituted by a master trust deed dated December 2, 2013, under Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust
was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated February 24, 2020 and made between Elian
Trustee (Cavman) Limited {the “Trustee™), a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands, and the Credit Suisse Management (Cayvman) Limited (the “Manager™). The principal office of the
Trustee and therefore the Series Trust is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005,
Cayman Islands (formerly. 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9007, Cayman Islands).
All Unitholders are entitled to the benetit of, are bound by, and are deemed to have notice of, the provisions
of the Master Trust Deed and any trust deed supplemental thereto,

The Man AHL Active Balanced (the “Selected Fund™) aims o generate capital growth over the medium 1o
long term by providing dynamic exposure 1o a range of assets and to provide an excess relurn stream with a
stable level of volatility regardiess of markel conditions. Such excess return stream refers to a return in
excess of that which would be provided by investment in high-quality, shor=dated government hills,

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to generate capital growth by investing substantially all of
the assets of the Series Trust imo the | Class Shares of the Selected Fund, which invests in (among other
things) global equity indices futures and bond futures using a proprietary guantitative model.

The Administrator of the Series Trust is MUFG Fund Services (Cavman) Limited (the “Administrator™),

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Lud (the “Invesiment
Manager™).

The Manager has authorised Daiwa Securities Co. Lud. o act as a distributor of the Units in Japan. The
Manager may appoint Turther distributors of the Units in future (each a “Distributor” and collectively the
“Distributors™).

The Fee Agent of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse International (the “Fee Agent™)

Credit Suisse Securitics (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member
Company™).

Daiwa Assel Management (Japan) Co. Lid.. acts as the Manager Support Service Provider (the “Manager
Support Service Provider™).

Final Repurchese Day

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of January 31, 2025 and the carliest practicable repurchasc

day following the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the “Final Repurchase Dayv™) unless

terminated carlier in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed,

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first 1o occur of any of the following:

(i1 the Net Asset Value on any valuation day is USDS1.000,000 or less and on that valuation day or
thereafier the Manager determines that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased by giving

notice w all unitholders: or

{ii} the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased, (each a
“Compulsory Repurchase Event”).
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the period from March 23, 2020 (commencement of operations) to January 31, 2021
{Stated in United States dolfars)

1. Incorporation and background information {continued)

U'pon the oceurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase
Day at the final repurchase price per wnit, The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the
Administrator in its sole discretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 34 as
the Net Asset Value per unit on the Final Repurchase Day (or iff such day is not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day). Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no
Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time 1o time
determine in respect of the Series Trust. Unitholder is able o receive an amount in respect of each unit
repurchased on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal o the Net Assel Value per
unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day) (the “Repurchase Price™). There is no repurchase fee applied to the
Repurchase Price in respect of each unil being repurchased.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on July 7. 2021,
1. Significant accounting policies
fal Statement of complionee

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Inwernational Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB™).

{hy Basis of measurement

The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements is the United States dollar and not
the local currency of the Cayman Islands, reflecting the fact that the units of the Series Trust are issued
and repurchased in United States dollars.

The financial statemenis are prepared on a fair value hasis for inancial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL"). including investments in Selected Fund. Other linancial assels and
liahilities and non-fimancial assets and liabilities are stated a1 amortised cost or historical cost.

S

fe) Use of extimates and fudgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management 1o make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting
eslimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any fulure periods
affected.

Information about significam areas of estimation uncertainyy and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are described in Note 9.

(e} Fareign currency transleion

Transactions in foreign currencics are translated to United States dollars at the foreign currency
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign curréncies are translated o United States dollars at the foreign currency-closing exchange rate at
the reporiing dates. Mon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency exchange differences arising on translation and realised gains and losses on disposals
or settlements of monelary assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Notes o the Financial Statements

For the period from March 23, 2020 (commencement of operations) to January 31, 2021
iStetedd in United Staves dollars)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
fe) Accounting policy and disclosures

(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations that is effective for the financial period beginning
March 23, 2020

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these linancial statements are set out
herein. These policies have been consistently applied w all the periods presented, unless otherwise
stated. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager 10
exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust’s accounting policies.

(i1 New standards, amendmenis and interpretations effective afier March 23, 2020 and have not been
carly adopted

A number of new standards, amendments o standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after March 23, 2020, and have not been early adopied in preparing these
financial statements, Mone of these are expected w have a material effect on the financial
statements of the Series Trust,

i Financial insiruments
it Recognition and initial measurement

The Series Trust initially recognises financial asseis and Nnancial liabilities a FVTPL on the trade
date, which is the date at which the Series Trust becomes a parly 1o the contractual provisions of
the instrument. (ther financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the date on which
they are originated.

A linancial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(i) Classificaion and subseguent measurement

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL.

A fimancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

e it is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets 1o collect contractual cash
Mows: and

e ils contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of
principal and interest.

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured atl FVTPL.
The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models.

e  Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash, subscriptions receivable and prepayments
and other assets. These financial assets are held 1o collect contractual cash Mow.

o (nher business model; this includes investments in Selected Fund, These financial assets are
managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking
place or based on the net assel value per unit obtained from their respective administrator,
which management deems o approximate fair value.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes w the Financial Statements

For the period from March 23, 2020 (commencement of operations) to Janvary 31, 2021
iStated in United Stares doflars)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
i Financial insiruments (comtinued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (contimied)
Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 1o their initial recognition unless the Series Trust
were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected

financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

sial liahilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.,

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilitics at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss,

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: This includes investment manager fees pavable,
administration fees payable, professional fees pavable, distributor fees pavable, fees agent fees
pavable, agent member company fees payable, manager support service provider fees pavable, due
o broker and other pavables.

i) Fair valve measurement principles

‘Fair Yalue' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid v transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between markel participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access at that date. The fair
value of a liability reflects ils non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in
an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as “active’ if transactions for the asset
or liahility take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments gquoted in an active markel at a close price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market. the Series Trust uses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technigue incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a ransaction,

Imputs w valuation technigues reasonably represent markel expectations and measures of the risk-
return factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Series Trust calibrates valuation technigues
and tests them for validity using prices from observable current market transactions in the same
instrument or based on other available observable market data,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUNID
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period from March 23, 2020 (commencement of operations) to January 31, 2021
{Srated in United States dollars)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Financial instruments feontimied)
fitt)  Fair value measwrement principles fcontinued)
Foir value Ma:fr;.rrch}'

IFRS 13 establishes a fair value hicrarchy that prioritises the inputs w valuation techniques used o
measure fair value. The hicrarchy gives the highest priority w0 unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or lihilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priorily o
measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

» Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability 10 access at the measurement date.

s Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either direcily or indirectly.

s Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (lowest among hierarchy ).

The level in fair value hierarchy within a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the lair value measurement in its entirety,

fivl  Amoriised cost measurement

The *amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayvments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowanee,

fvi  Impairment

The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial assets measured at amortised
cost on 12-month or litetime basis,

Impairment on cash, subscriptions receivable and prepayments and other assets has been measured
on a | 2-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series
Trust considers the credit risk is low or not material as a whole based on the external credit ratings
of the counterparties, On this basis, there was no impairment recorded by the Series Trust for the
period ended January 31, 2021,

fvi}  Cffsetring

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount presented in the stalement of
financial position when, and only when, the Series Trust has a legally enforceable right o ofTsel
the amounts and intends either 1o settle them on a net basis or o realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

As at January 31, 2021, all financial assets and liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as none
met the criteria for financial instrument offseiting, and therefore have not been offset in the
Statement of Financial Position,

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for Net unrealised and realised gains on
investments in Selected Fund.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(Y Financial Instruments feontinied)
ivii) Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Series Trust neither transters nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial
asscts that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as
a separate asset or lability in the statement of financial position.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (and
the carrying amount allocated o the portion of the asset derecognised). and the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.
The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired.
On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or lisbilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss,

{viii) Specific instruments

Cash
This includes cash deposited with banks, which is subject o an insignificant risk of changes in
value and are held for meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other

purposes.

Investments in Selected Fund are classified into the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss category and are carried at their net assel value as reported by the Sclected Fund's
administrators.

Where definitive values are not available, estimated values of the Series Trust’s investments in
Selected Funds may be used, For the purposes of subscriptions and repurchases, no adjustments
are made to such values, notwithstanding any subsequent adjustment to the estimated valuation
provided in respect of the relevant invested fund.

As a result of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the estimated carrving values for the
aforementioned securities may differ from the values that would have been used had a ready
mirket for the investments existed, and the differences could be material,

{2l fmterest income

Interest income and expense are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as it accrues,
using the original effective interest rate of the instrument caleulated at the acquisition or origination
date.

i Ner income ' (foss) from financial instruments ar FVTPL

Net income/{loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL are comprised of gains/{losses) arising from
disposals and changes in the fair value of invesiments,

1) Fees and other expenses

Fees and other expenses are recognised in profit or loss on an accrued basis.
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1, Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i} Redeemable participating units
The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder's option. The Series Trust classifies its
puttable instruments as liabilities in accordance with [AS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments:

Presentation,

The amendment requires putlable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability o
be elassificd as equity where certain strict criteria are mel. Those criteria include:

+ The puttable instruments must entitle the holder (o a pro-rata share of net assets;
s The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be identical;

s There must be no contractual obligations (o deliver cash or another linancial asset other than the
obligation on the issuer to repurchase; and

e The total expected cash lows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially
on the profit or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were mel, the Series Trust's unils have been classified as equity at January 31,
2021,

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal w a proportionate share of the
Series Trust's wtal equity.

Linits are carried at the repurchased amount that is pavable at the Statement of Financial Position date if
the holder exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Linits are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unit at the time of
issue or repurchase. The Series Trust’s equity per unit is caleulated by dividing the total equity by the
total number of outstanding units.

Y. Investments in Selected Fund

The Series Trust has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment funds in which it invest, but that it
does not consolidate, meet the definition of structured entities because:

= the voting rights in this funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them because the rights
relate 1o administrative tasks only:

= each fund’s activities are restricted by its prospectus; and
- the funds have narrow and well-defined abjectives W provide invesiment opportunities Lo investors,

The 1able which shows the types of structured entities that the Series Trust does not consolidate but in
which it holds and interest,

Type of siructured entity  Nature and purpose Initeresi held by the Fund
% of interest in the

To manage assets on behalf of third party
imvestors and generate fees for the
Investment funds investment manager. investee funds
These vehicles are financed through the
issues of units to investors
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3. Investments in Selected Fund (continued)

As of January 31, 2021, the Selected Fund was denominated in United States dollars. Summarised
information reflecting the Series Trusts investments in Selected Fund as of January 31, 2021 is detailed
below,

21
Saol
Yol infernest
inferest in the ool
in the investoe Series
Fair  investec funds Trust's Redemption  Lock
Stranegy Underlving Fund Lot Value funds USD Class  netassers  permitied -up Level
Multi-strategy:
MAN AHI
ACTIVE
BALANCEDIUSD 56839394 60,047,722 384% S4858%  99.58% Daily nfa Level 2

4.  Share capital

LIS Class units were initially offered to investors during the initial offer period at the issue price and will
be issued on the initial closing day, subject 1o the minimum issue size.

From and including the initial closing day, units of cach class of Units will be available for subscription by
investors at a price equal to the Net Asset Value per unit of the applicable class of Units on cach dealing
day. subject 1o the minimum subscription. The MNet Asset Value per wnit for each class of Units are
calculated as an the relevant dealing day (or i1 that dealing day is not also a valuation day the immediately
preceding valuation day). The minimum subscription amount is | unit and thereafter subscriptions may be
made in 1 unit increments. The aggregate subscription amounts are rounded down 1o the nearest whole unil.
There are no subscription fee payable.

Under the terms of the Trust deed, unitholders are the only persons recognised by the Trustee as having any
right, title or interest in or to Units registered in their name and the Trustee will only recognise such
unitholders as absolute owner of the Units and will not be bound by any notice o the contrary. The Trustee
is not bound to take notice of or to see to the exccution of any trust or, save as provided under the Trust
deed or save as by some court of competent jurisdiction orders, 10 recognise any trust oF equity or other
interest affecting the title w any Units,

The issue and fully paid capital comprises:

2021

USD Class Units

Number of units

Linits as a1 March 23, 2020 -
Units subseribed T17.154
Lnits repurchased (153,781}
Units as al January 31, 2021 563.373

Investors may subscribe for units of a class of Units during the initial offer period by sending a completed
subscription agreement w the Administrator s0 as o be received by the Administrator by no later than
7.00 p.m. {Tokvoe time) on the last day of the initial offer period or by such other times and/or days as the
Manager may in its sole discretion determine.

119/218



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes o the Financial Statemenis

For the period from March 23, 2020 (commencement of operations) to January 31, 2021
iStated in United States dollars)

4. Share capital (continued )

Units are issued on the initial closing day or the relevant dealing day, as applicable.

Applicants for units should note that none of the Trustee, the Administrator. the Invesiment Manager nor
any of their duly authorised agents or delegates will accept responsibility for any loss caused as a result of
the illegibility or non-receipt of any application sent by electronic mail or other clectronic means as agreed
in advance with the Administrator or for any loss caused in respect of any action taken as a consequence of
instructions believed in good faith to be signed by properly authorised persons.

The Investment Manager reserves the right to decline any application o subseribe for units in whole or in
part in its absolute discretion and units which have been issucd on a dealing day but Tor which a properly
completed application and payment. as described above, is not timely received may be compulsorily
repurchased for nil consideration,

The Trustee or its delegates reserve the right o request such information as is necessary w0 verily the
identity of an applicant (or transficrec) of units, the identity of their beneficial owners/controllers (where
applicable) and the source of payment of subscription monies, Where the circumstances permit, the Trustee
or its delegates may be satisfied that full due diligence may not be required where an exemption applics
under the Anti-Money Laundering Regulations {2020 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, as amended and
revised from time 10 time or any other applicable law. However, detailed verification information may be
required prior to the pavment of any proceeds from or any transfer of an interest in units.

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on cach repurchase day in respect of units of
a class of Units for which subseription proceeds have been received by the Administrator. In order 1o make
a repurchase reguest, a unitholder must submit a completed repurchase notice in the form or other electronic
means as agreed in advance with the Administrator specifving the number of units 10 be repurchased so as
to be received by the Administrator by no later than 7.00 pm. (Tokyo time) on the repurchase notice day
immediately preceding the relevant repurchase day, or by such other time andfor days as the Investment
Manager may, in ils sole discretion, determine (the "Repurchase Notice Deadline").

The repurchase price per unit of a class of Units are calculated as the Net Asset Value per unit of such class
of Unilts as at the relevant repurchase day (or if that repurchase day is not also a valuation day then on the
immediately preceding valuation day) (the "Repurchase Price”).

Mo conversion of units is permitted in respect of the Series Trust,

5. Fees and expenses
Adminisirator Fee

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.08% on the first USD 250,000,000 of the net assets, 0,07%
on the next USD 250,000,000 of the net assets and 0.06% on the net assets over LIS 300,000,000, subject
o a monthly minimum fee of US$7,000. The fees carned by the Administrator during the period ended
January 31, 2021, and outstanding fees pavable o the Administrator as of January 31, 2021, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

Prafessional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the period ended Januwary 31, 2021, and
outstanding fees payable o the Transfer Agent as of January 31, 2021, have heen disclosed in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

6.  Operating expenses
The Series Trust is responsible for all other normal operating expenses including audit and legal fees and
other charges including the expenses of acquiring and disposing of investmenis. These expenses are acerued

throughout the period for which the Series Trust receives the related benefit and are recorded as general
administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive income,
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7. Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cavman Islands Government exempting it from all local
income. profits and capital gains taxes until December 2. 2063, No such taxes are levied in the Cavman
Islands at the present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and
capital gains, Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate ilem in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, No withholding tax expense was paid during the period ended January 31, 2021,

The Selected Fund may choose to invest in seeurities domiciled in countries other than Cayman Islands.
Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable (o
non-residents including the Selected Fund. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-
assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund's hroker on a
*withholding" basis.

In accordance with IAS 12 - Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it
is probable that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Series Trust's
capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full
knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected o
be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way
cnacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series Trusts, This creates uncertainty about whether or
not a wx liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain Lax
liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which
could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant ax
authorities,

As al January 31, 2021, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability to record
for any unrecognized tax benefit in the accompanying financial statements, While this represents the
Manager®s best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on
capital gains carned by the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a
retrospective basis, and could result in a loss o the Series Trust,

8  Related party transactions

Partics are considered to be related if one party has the ability 1o control the other parly or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee
Agent, Manager, Investment Manager, Distributor, Manager Support Service Provider, and Agent Member
Company are all related parties to the Series Trust. All fees are paid from the assets of the Series Trust by
the administrator unless otherwise noted.

Trustee Fees

The Trustee is entitled o receive a fixed annual fee of USD 10,000 per annum payable annually. The
Trustee is also entitled w0 be reimbursed for all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the
performance of its duties. The fees eamed by the Trustee during the period ended January 31, 2021, and
outstanding fees pavable o the Trustee as of January 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Investment Manager's Fee

The Investment Manager is entitled 10 receive a fee of 0.15% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on
and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The fees earned by the Invesiment
Manager during the period ended January 31, 2021, and outstanding fees pavable to the Investment
Manager as of January 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectivelv.
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8. Related pariy transactions (continued)
Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent is entitled o receive a fee of 0.12% per annum of the Net Asset Value (the "Opcerational
Costs Fees™) acerued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. The
Operational Costs Fees are pavable by the Administrator on behall’ of the Trustee. The fees camned by the
Fee Agent during the period ended January 31, 2021, and outstanding fees payable o Fee Agent as of
January 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of
Financial Position, respectively.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the Investment Manager
fees, audil fees, formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, any broker fees
relating to security transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and
expenses, annual fees pavable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust lo government badies and agencies,
any insurance costs, any costs relating 1o the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 34 and other similar
offering documents and the costs relating o the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such
documents and any taxes relating 1o the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs,
licensing, tax reporting, anti-money laundering compliance and monitoring, expenses related o the
termination or the liquidation of the Series Trust and any other extraordinary costs and expenses that would
not wsually oceur,

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient 1o cover the Ordinary Cosis, the Fee Agenl is
liable for any outstanding amounis, Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall
be retained by the Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust, The
fees carned by the Fee Agent during the period ended January 31, 2021, and outstanding fees payable o the
Fee Agent as of January 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Manager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of USD 5,000 per annum payable monthly in arrears.
The Fee Agent is responsible for paving the Manager Fees. For the avoidance of doubt, the Manager may
decide in its sole discretion to reduce or waive the pavment of the Manager fees. The fees camned by the
Marnager during the period ended January 31, 2021, and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of
January 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of
Financial Position. respectively.

Agent Member Company

The Agent Member Company will be entitled 1o receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Assel Value,
acerued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. The fees eamed by the
Agent Member Company during the period ended January 31, 2021, and outstanding fees payable o the
Agent Member Company as ol January 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.
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8. Related party transactions (continued)
Manager Support Service Provider

The Manager Support Service Provider will be entitled 1o receive, accrued on and caleulated as al cach
Valuation Day:

(i) if the Net Asset Value per Unit attributable o such class of Units over the Calculation Period has
increased by less than 2% (using the Net Asset Value per Unit after the reinvestment of gross
distributions), in respect of cach Caleulation Valuation Day, a fee of 0,05% per annum of the Net Asset
Value attributable wo such class of Units: or

(i1} in all other cases, a fee of 0.20% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable o such class of Units,
in both cases accrued on an actual / 365 day count fraction and payable monthly in arrears. The Fee
shall be paid within a reasonable period from the end of the month for which payment is due. For the
avoidance of doubi. on each Valuation Day prior to the first Calculation Valuation Day, the Fee will be
calculated in accordance with limb (i) above.

The fees earned by the Manager Support Service Provider during the period ended January 31, 2021, and
outstanding fees pavable to the Manager Support Service Provider as of January 31. 2021, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

Disiribution Fees
The Distributor is entitled to receive accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day:

(i) i the Net Assel Value per unit attributable o such class of Units over the calculation period has
increased by less than 2% in respect of each caleulation valuation day, a fee of 0.40% per annum of the
Net Assel Value auributable wo such class of Units; or

(i} in all other cases, a fee of 0.75% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such ¢lass of Units,

The fees earned by the Distributor during the period ended January 31, 2021, and outstanding fees pavable
1o the Distributor as of January 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

9.  Financial instruments and associated risks
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's investment portfolio comprises solely of the Selected Fund, The Series Trust's activities
expose it W a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carried out by the Manager under
policies approved by the Trustee.

The Series Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund.
For example, if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the
Selected Fund, the Selected Fund and, in wrn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating
expenses, thereby producing lower returns, Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to
repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting in increased portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict
ils investment activities or be precluded from investing in certain instruments due Lo regulatory restrictions
on certain of s dircct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an adverse effect on the
performance of the Selected Fund, and. in turn, the Series Trust.
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9,  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(A) Market Risk

fi} Curvency Risk

All Ninancial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and other assets and liabilities held by the Scrics
Trust are denominated in 1.5, Dollars, thus the Manager believes that the Series Trust has litle currency
risk exposure, and is not subject to risk due o direct Muctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign currency
rates,

Investment in the Selected Fund in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in
currencies other than the functional currency of the Series Trust, For this reason, changes in foreign
currency exchange rates can affect the value of the Series Trust’s portfolio.

{iil fnterest Rate Risk

Imterest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when interest rates
decline and decrease when interest rates increase, Prices of longer-term securities generally change more in
response Lo interest rate changes than prices of shorter-term securities, The Series Trust may lose money if
short-term or long-term interest rates rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series
Trust management. When interest rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication
of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt security. The bigger the security’s duration value, the
larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given movement in interest rates may be. Therefore,
the Met Asset Value may fluctuate.

The Series Trust does not have direel exposure o interest rate risk, however has indirect exposure o
interest rate through its investment in the Selected Fund.

The yield on the Selected Fund's (and indirectly. the Series Trust's) investments may be sensitive 1o
changes in prevailing interest rates, which may result in 2 mismateh between the Selected Fund’s asset vield
and borrowing rates and consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its investments.

It interest rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally decline, reducing the value of the
Selected Fund's (and indirectly, the Series Trust's) investments. A major change in interest rates or a
significant decline in the market value of the Selected Fund's (and indirectly, the Trust's) investments. or
other markel event, could cause the value of the investments of the Master Fund’s investors (and indirectly
the unitholders® investments in the Scries Trust), or its vield, 1w decling,

If interest rates change, the values of longer=duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change
than the values of shorter-duration debt securities.

The Series Trust may invest in fixed income securities through its indirect exposure W the investments of
the Selecled Fund. Any changes o prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of fulure rales may
result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities held.

The majority of the Series Trust’s financial assets are non-interest bearing and, as a result, the Series Trust

is not subject to significant amounts of risk due o Muctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates. The interest bearing lnancial instruments are represented mainly by cash amounting to US5666,021,
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9, Financial instruments and associated risks (continued
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)

iA) Market Risk {eontinued)

fiii) Market Price Risk

The market price of securities held by the Selected Fund may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or
unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due 1 factors affecting securities markets generally or
particular industries represented in the securities markets. The value of a sccurity may decline due 1o
general market conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or
perceived adverse economic conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes
in the general outlook for corporate eamnings. changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor
sentiment. They may also decline due o factors which affeet a particular industry or industries, such as
labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions within an industry, During a
general downturn in the securities markets, multiple assel classes may decline in value simultaneously.
Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at January 31, 2021, would have
increased the total equity by S6(0,977. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal. have an equal but
opposite effecl.

The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in the market price risk of the Series Trust
at January 31, 2021 as a percentage of net assets of the Series Trust

Countries of investment by the Series Trust Fair Value %o of Net Assels
Investments in securities

Australia 6,367 (0L00%G
Canada (443.543) {0.02%)
Germany S.ATHAUS 0.33%
Hong Kong 1084481 0.07T%
laly 545434 0.03%
Japan 1,190,089 0.07%
Metherlands 344,586 0.02%
Singapore 2,835,811 0.17%
South Korea 1.849.733 0.12%
Turkey 164,456 0.01%
United Kingdom 17940694 0.10%
United States H03.043 950 35.79%
France (39.291) (0.00%
South Africa (38,855) (L0 %
Sweden (254.073) (0.02%)
Total Investments in securities 618.017.277 36.69%
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9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)

(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer’s credit rating or the market’s perception of an issuer’s creditworthiness may affect the
value of the Series Trust™s investment in the Selected Fund. The degree of credit risk depends on both the
financial condition of the issuer and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed 1o the credit risk associaed with debt
instruments that mav be held by the Selected Fund. All transactions in listed securities held by the Selecled
Fund are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal,
as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received pavment. Payment is made on a
purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails w meet
their obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of January 31, 2021 is the
carrving amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. No collateral or other credit
enhancements are held by the Series Trust. None of these assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund's sccurity tramsactions are mainly
concentrated with their custodian, The Series Trust minimizes its exposure to credit risk by conducting
transactions with an established and reputable broker, which is Mitsubishi UF] Investor Services Banking
{Luxembourg) S.A. and as at January 31, 2021, credit rating was Al and A as published by Moody's and
S&P respectively. At January 31, 2021, substantially all cash is placed at this broker.

The carrving amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting
date. This also relates w finaneial assets carried at amortized cost, as they have a short=term to maturity.

As at January 31, 2021, the Series Trust's financial assets exposed o credit risk amounted to the following:

January 31, 2021

Investments in Selected Fund 60,097,722
Cash Hh6021
Subscriptions receivable 18,409
Prepaid Trustee Fees 1,203
Prepavments and other assets 111.877

1SS 60,895,232
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9,  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)

(C) Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk exists when panicular investments are difficult o purchase or sell. The Series Trust's
investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell
the illiquid securities al an advaniageous time or price.
The table below analyzes the Series Trust’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the

remaining period al the Statement of Financial Position date 1o the contractual maturity date. The amounts
in the lable are the contractual undiscounted cash Mows.

3 months 3 months Total

_As at January 31, 2021 or less t0 1 year b i
Administration fees pavable 30,188 — 30,188
Due o broker O, 00K - 400,000
Professional fees payable 19,438 - 19,438
Distributor fees pavable 38,280 - 38,280
Fee Agent fees pavable 4.752 - 4,752
Agent Member Company fees payable 306 = 306
Manager Support Service Provider fees payuble 10,211 - 10,211
Investment Manager fees payable T.632 - T.632
Other payvables 31,076 - 3076
Met assets attributable wo holders of redeemable units 60,353,259 - 60,353,250
611, 895,252 - 611,895,232

The Manager monitors the Series Trust's liquidity position on an on-going basis, and does not invest in
illiquid assets.

Due 1o its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity risk associated with
unitholder repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund's Prospectus. The Series Trust is
managed to include liquid mvestments sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial
repurchases of Units in the Series Trust could require the Selected Fund to liguidate its investments more
rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the repurchases. These factors could adversely
alTect the value of the units repurchased and the valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the
liquidity of the Series Trust’s remaining assets il more liquid assets have been sold o mest the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applied in respect o the Selected Fund for the period ended January
31, 2021.
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9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued )
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(D) Risk Management

The Series Trust's Investment Manager's team is supported by certain risk management systems and
professionals, which provide regular reporting on the Sclected Fund and quantitative risk measures,

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attribuiable 1o the holder of units.

The amount of nel assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the
Series Trust is subject 1w daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series
Trust's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Series Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order o provide retums for the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a
strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order o
mainlain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust’s policy is to perform the following:

= Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the
amount of distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

+  Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series Trust.
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of units,
9.2 Additional Series Trust’s Risks
{A) Custody Risk

Neither the Trusiee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust's investment in the
Selected Fund, The cusiodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected 1o act as custodians may hecome
insolvent, causing the Series Trust 1o lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians,

{B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Investment Manager and other parties, and each of their
respective agents, principals, officers, emplovees, and affiliates are entitled w be indemnified out of the
assels of the Series Trust under certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Met Asset Value per
unit.

{C) Sertlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in cerlain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United
States, the European Union and Japan. Foreign sctlement and clearance procedures and trade regulations
also may involve certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securitics) not typically
associgted with the seitlement of United States investiments, At times, settlements in certain foreign
countries have not kept pace with the number of securities transactions. These problems may make it
difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager (o carry out transactions for the account of the
Series Trust IT the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of securitics, it may miss
altractive investment opportunities and certain of the Series Trust's assets may be uninvested with no return
carned thereon for some period,

If the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delaved in setiling a sale of securilies,

the Serics Trust may Jose money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, ir'it has contracied
to sell the security to another party: the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.2 Additional Series Trust"s Risks {continued)
(D) Derivatives

The Series Trust's assets are not used to directly invest in derivatives. The series trust may be exposed 1o
risks associated with investing in derivatives through its investment in the Selected Fund. These risks
include;

= Credit Risk — the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaciion) on a
derivative transaction will be unable 1o honor its financial obligation 1o the Series Trust.

+  Leverage Risk — the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies that
relatively small market movements may result in Jarge changes in the value of an invesimendt, Certain
investments or trading strategics that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the
amount originally invested.

+  Liguidity Risk — the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that
the seller would like or at the price that the seller believes the security is currently worth,

As of January 31, 2021, there were no Series Trust derivative assets and derivative liabilities subject 1o
netting arrangements and similar arrangements,

(E} Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterpartics. including banks and brokerage firm with which the Manager
or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in
material losses o the Series Trust, In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the
Series Trust o the counterparties in order o secure certain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the
Manager during the period ended January 31, 2021,

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Stement of Financial
Position.

{F) Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any Generated Income, Distributions (if any ) may be paid in whole
or in part out of investment principal attributable 1o the units or, alternatively, the Generated Income may be
zero. A distribution can in effect result in a return of an investor’s initial capital or capital gains therehy
eroding that capital to the extent the distribution exceeds available income. In consequence of this
possibility, investors seeking capital preservation may not achieve this given probable deterioration in the
value of the Serics Trust's investments caused by declining asset values and a return of capital to invesiors
by way of distribution, 1t the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase Price a unitholder receives back
in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder’s initial investment,

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund. Should the
Selected Fund fail to pay any distributions or pay less than anticipated. including due to a rise in the non-
treaty tax rate applicable to the Series Trust, then the Series Trust will gain correspondingly less than
investors may previously have expeeted. Furthermore, if the interest rate al which the distributions received
accrue falls during the vearly period, this may also lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.
The Selected Fund paid distributions of $0.00 during the period.
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9,  Financial instroments and associated risks (continued)
9.2 Additional Series Trust's Risks (continued)
{5} No Interest in the Selected Fund

The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund, An
investment in units does not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Fund.

{H) Early Termination of the Series Trust

Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for Jamuary 31, 2023, the Final
Repurchase Day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur,

i1y Other Risk

During the period, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization,
The situation is dynamic with various cities and countries around the world responding in different ways to
address the outhreak. The rapid development and Muidity of this situation precludes any prediction as ils
ultimate impact, which may have a continued adverse impact on cconomic and market conditions and
trigeer a period of global economic slowdown,

Management and the Trustee are monitoring developments relating o COVID-19 and are coordinating s
operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global health
organizations, relevant governments, and general pandemic response best practices,

9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation

The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 Fair value measurement and utilizes the last wraded markel price for s
fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active marketr is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis,

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each period end date. Valuation techniques used for non-
standardized financial instruments such as options, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives,
include the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions. reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation technigues
commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relving as little as
possible on entity-specilic inpuls.

For instruments for which there is no active markel, the Series Trust may use internally developed models,
which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the
industry. Some of the inputs 1o these models may not be market observahle and are therefore estimated
based on assumptions. The ouput of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot
be determined with certainty, and valuation technigues employved may not fully reflect all factors relevant 1o
the positions the Series Trust holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, o allow for
additional Factors including model risk, liguidity risk and counterparty risk.
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9.  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements,

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

¢ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can acecess at the measurement date;

¢ Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the
aszet or liahility, either directly or indirectly: and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hicrarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its
entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unohservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular
input to the fair value measurement in its entirely requires judgment. considering factors specific o the
asset or liability,

The determination of what constitutes *observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator,
under advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager. considers
observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated. reliable and
verifiable, not proprictary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant
markeL.

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according 1o the inputs used as of January 31, 2021 in
valuing the Series Trust's financial assets:

{Unadjusted)

Duoted Prices in Significant

Active Markeis Oiher Significant
Financial Assets at Fair for ldentical Ohservahle 'nohserva Fair Valoe at
Value Throwgh Profit Investments Inputs ble Inputs Janwary 31,
or Lass iLevel 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) 021
Investment in the
Selected Fund
MAN AHL Active
Balanced 1 (USID Class) 5 = 5 60,097,722 5 - 5 60,097,722
Financial assets, at fair
value through profit or
loss 8 - § 60097722 5 - 5 60,097,722

During the period ended January 31, 2021, there were no transfers between Levels 1.2 and 3.
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9, Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are nol considered to be active but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by ohservable inputs are
classified within Level 2. These include over-the~counter derivatives and debl securities. As Level 2
investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions,
valuations may be adjusied o reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on
available market information,

For purposes of caleulating the NAV of the Selected Fund. fixed income securities for which market quotes
are readily available are normally valued on the basis of quotes obtained from established market makers or
pricing services and are classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund,
Forward contracis are valued using observable inputs which can generally be corroborated by markel data
and are therefore classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund, As of
January 31, 2021 all financial assets and liabilities were classified as Level 2 investments.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i} At January 31, 2021, cash and all other assets and liabilities (including investments in Selected Fund,
subseription receivable, prepaid trustee fees, prepavments and other assets and payables for, investment
manager fees, manager support service provider fee, fee agent fees, distribution fees, transfer agent
fees, administrator fees, custody fees, professional fees and agent member company fees and ather and
due 10 broker) are deemed short-term (inancial assets and liabilities whose carrving amounts
approximate fair valee because of their short-term nature.

9.4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of December 31, 2020 the Selected Fund's net asset value was 51.684,502,740. As of December 11,
2020 the Selected Fund held total investments of $630.216,483 comprising of fixed income securities (asset
hacked-securitics, bank loan obligations, commercial real estate equities, common stocks, convertible bonds
and notes, corporate bonds and notes, mortgage-backed securities, rights, sovercign issues, 1S,
government agencies, ULS. treasury obligations and warrants) of $399.420.573. The investments of the
share class the Series Trust invested in are Futures contract assets of 22,514,023 and liabilitics of 3.917,319
and forward contract assets of 16,696,105 and liabilitics of 4,496,899,

The valuation of invesiments in unconsolidated structured entities represents the amount the Series Trust
would expeet o receive iF it were to liquidated or redeem its investments subjeet to the underlying fund’s
liguidity or redemption restrictions and costs.

The rights attached to the Series Trust's holding in the Selected Fund is similar o those of other investors,
Subseriptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in their offering documents, The
Series Trust has the ability o liguidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the
provisions of the provisions of the Selected Fund's offering memorandum. Refer to Note 1 for information
regarding the investment objectives of the Selected Fund,

10. Subsequent events

Trustee has evaluated the events and transactions that have ocourred through July 7, 2021, the dote the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective January 31, 2021 through July 7. 2021, there were subscriptions of US%3,586.376 and repurchases
of 1IS£15,132,810, There are no other subsequent events 1o report as relates 1o the Series Trusy

Trustee noted no other items requiring adjustment or additional disclosure in the financial statements.
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2020 12 31

629,759,920 69,122,449
435,453,105 47,795,333
599,420,573 65,792,402
39,210,128 4,303,704
807 89

612,088 67,183
1,704,456,621 187,081,159
8,940,768 981,339
8,414,218 923,545
1,075,850 118,085
1,523,045 167,169
19,953,881 2,190,138

1,684,502,740 184,891,021
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578,455,583
1,057,085,998
(92,633,563)

141,594,722
1,684,502,740
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116,025,759
(10,167, 460)
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154,414,831 16,948,572
1,837,035 201,633
156,251,866 17,150,205
10,091,025 1,107,591
4,053,476 444,910
256,918 28,199
197,302 21,656
30,364 3,333
22,579 2,478
5,480 601
14,657,144 1,608,768
141,594,722 15,541,437
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141,594,722 15,541,437
- (22,623,556) (2,483,162)
4,148,341 455,322

(506,978,529)

(55,645,963)

(35,076,831) (3,850,033)
7,383 810
(483,690) (53,090)
(4,265,142) (468,142)
758,739 83,279
1,275,682 140,019

(421,642,881)

1,057,085,998
(92,633,563)

964,452,435 105,858,299
542,809,554 59,578,777
465,820,395 51,128,447

1,008, 629,949 110,707,223
629,759,920 69,122,449
387,810,797 42,566,113

(8,940,768) (981,339)

1,008,629, 949 110,707,223
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893
748

736

79
980
992

1,211
958
477

91

1,214

279
124

232

420

200

81
377
295

1,043

323

Australian 10 Year Bond Futures March 2021

Australian 3 Year Bond Futures March 2021

CAN 10 year Bond Futures March 2021

DAX Index Futures March 2021

Euro-BTP Future March 2021

Euro-OAT Future March 2021

EURO-BOBL Future March 2021

EURO-BUND Future March 2021

SWISS MKT IX Future March 2021

EURO-BUXL 30 Year Bond Futures March 2021
EURO STOXX 50 March 2021

HSCEIl Futures January 2021
HANG SENG Index Futures January 2021

FTSE/MIB Index Futures March 2021

TOPIX Index Futures March 2021

AMSTERDAM Index Futures January 2021

SGX Nifty 50 January 2021
NIKKEI 225 (SGX) March 2021
FTSE Taiwan Index January 2021
FTSE China A50 January 2021

KOSP12 Index Futures March 2021
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297,916 0.02
34,832 0.00
332,748 0.02
285,950 0.02
966,803 0.06
672,512 0.04
407,742 0.02
67,528 0.00
958,188 0.06
1,986,860 0.12
310,255 0.02
508,520 0.03
5,878,408 0.35
459,372 0.03
625,109 0.04
1,084,481 0.07
545,434 0.03
1,408,744 0.08
344,586 0.02
7,771 0.00
1,847,084 0.11
273,827 0.02
738,901 0.04
2,867,583 0.17
2,090,652 0.13
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2,634 BIST 30 Futures February 2021 169,456 0.01
1,058 Long GILT Future March 2021 2,068,523 0.12

572 S&P500 EMINI Future March 2021 2,481,995 0.15

2,862 United States 2 Year Note (CBT) Bond Futures March 2021 723,953 0.04

197 NASDAQ 100 E-MINI March 2021 1,862,002 0.11

1,649 United States 10 Year Note (CBT) Bond Futures March 2021 369,508 0.02
5,437,458 0.32

22,514,023 1.34

50,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 13/10/2021 61,193,712 3.63
45,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 14/07/2021 55,257,414 3.28
40,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 19/05/2021 49,066,802 2.91
50,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 21/04/2021 61,299,243 3.64
50,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 24/03/2021 61,274,160 3.63
50,000,000 French Discount Treasury Bill 0% 16/06/2021 61,363,174 3.64
50,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 08/04/2021# 49,989,969 2.97
50,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 14/01/2021# 49,999,383 2.97
50,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 22/04/2021# 49,988,956 2.97
50,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 25/02/2021# 49,995,588 2.97
50,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 25/03/2021# 49,992,172 2.97
599,420,573 35.58

599,420,573 35.58
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2020 12 31
- b

1,296 1,544 2021 1 29 1 43 0.00
10,119,000 13,597,406 2021 1 14 1 236,424 0.01
1,325 1,768 2021 1 29 1 44 0.00
165,775,978,728 1,589,751,937 2021 1 29 2 16,451,971 0.98
6,014,822 620,000,000 2021 1 29 1 7,623 0.00
16,696,105 0.99

638,630,701 37.91
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2020 12 31
272 SP1 200 Futures March 2021 (272,381) (0.02)
409 S&P/TSX 60 Index Futures March 2021 (729,493) (0.04)
402 CAC40 10 EURO Futures January 2021 (39,291) (0.00)
186 JPN 10 Year (OSE) Bond Futures March 2021 (218,655) (0.01)
446 MSCI SING IX ETS January 2021 (31,772) (0.00)
173 FTSE/JSE TOP 40 March 2021 (38,855) (0.00)
322 KOREA 10 Year Bond Futures March 2021 (203,618) (0.01)
554 KOREA 3 Year Bond Futures March 2021 (37,301) (0.00)
(240,919) (0.01)
1,695 OMXS30 Index Futures November 2020 (254,073) (0.02)
690 FTSE 100 Index Futures March 2021 (277,829) (0.02)
1,001 United States Long (CBT) Bond Futures March 2021 (1,097,614) (0.07)
1,025 United States Ultra (CBT) Bond Futures March 2021 (716,437) (0.04)
(1,814,051) (0.11)
(3,917,319) (0.23)
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2020 12 31
379,601,817 313,205,403 2021 1 14 1 (3,752,740) 0.23)
22,514,987 16,857,015 2021 1 14 1 (530,480) (0.03)
1,948,708 201,970,814 2021 1 14 2 (7,861) (0.00)
39,131,649 4,060,000,000 2021 1 29 8 (205,818) (0.01)
(4,496,899) 0.27)
(8,414,218) (0.50)
638,630,701 37.91
(8,414,218) (0.50)
1,054,286,257 62.59
1,684,502, 740 100.00
a
b
20.50
a 1.32
b 0.98
14.67
62.53
100.00

UCITS 8.2 B
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2021
53,503,642 5,872,559,746
237,565 26,075,134
53,266,077 5,846,484,612
496,535
107.28 11,775
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1103 227
852
10
10
15
21
50

33.2
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2021 735,000 8,067

10
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2021

1,423,834,551
35,485,863
7,582,720,896
271,205,138
28 212,040,015,683

11
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2019 2019 12 31 2020
2020 12 31
22
38 59 131

23 103

2021 31
109.76
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2020 12 31

2020 2019
UsD usD

16,025 1,759 34,534 3,790

16,025 1,759 34,534 3,790

4 16,025 1,759 34,534 3,790

5 220,000 24,147 215,000 23,598

(21) (2

236,025 25,906 249,513 27,387

6 (111,476)  (12,236)  (143,734)  (15,776)

124,549 13,670 105,779 11,610

124,549 13,670 105,779 11,610

124,549 13,670 105,779 11,610
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2020 12 31

2020 2019

uSb usb

©

1,643,796 180,423 1,436,186 157,636

10 220,970 24,254 217,427 23,865

1,864,766 204,677 1,653,613 181,501

10 217,933 23,920 131,329 14,415
217,933 23,920 131,329 14,415
11 735,000 80,674 735,000 80,674
911,833 100,083 787,284 86,412

1,646,833 180,756 1,522,284 167,086

1,864,766 204,677 1,653,613 181,501
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2020 12 31
usb usb usb
2020
735,000 80,674 787,284 86,412 1,522,284 167,086
124,549 13,670 124,549 13,670
12 31 735,000 80,674 911,833 100,083 1,646,833 180,756
2019

735,000 80,674 681,505 74,802 1,416,505 155,476
105,779 11,610 105,779 11,610
12 31 735,000 80,674 787,284 86,412 1,522,284 167,086
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2020 2019

UsD usD
124,549 13,670 105,779 11,610
4 (16,025) (1,759)  (34,534) (3,790)
21 2
108,524 11,912 71,266 7,822
(3,543) (389)  (10,575) (1,161)
(3,543) (389)  (10,575) (1,161)
86,604 9,506 127,594 14,005
86,604 9,506 127,594 14,005
4 16,025 1,759 34,534 3,790
207,610 22,787 222,819 24,457
207,610 22,787 222,819 24,457
1,436,186 157,636 1,213,367 133,179
1,643,796 180,423 1,436,186 157,636
9 1,643,796 180,423 1,436,186 157,636
1,643,796 180,423 1,436,186 157,636
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KY 1104
309 c/o
Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,

Cayman Islands

(a
IFRS

IFRS I1AS
1ASB

(b

IFRS

(c
ush

usb
uSsD
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usb

(@

(e

ECL
@

(f

(9
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(¢
IFRS
ECL
ECL
(h
(i
a
(a
(b
(
(
(
( @)
( @)
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IFRS

2020 2019
16,025 34,534
16,025 34,534
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2020 2019
220,000 215,000
220,000 215,000

2020 2019

(34,668)

(1,182) (191)
(3,201) (3,119)
(107,093) (105, 756)
(111,476) (143,734)

2039 10 10
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5,000 2019 5,000 2020 12 31
REITa
a
a
CS
us
us
NB  MYAM
UK
AMP
a
AMP REIT
J REIT
17 20
CAT
HOLT
PIMCO
J REIT

AHL
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SBI  PICTET

J REIT

us

2020

2020 2019
1,643,796 1,436,186
1,643,796 1,436,186

2020 2019

220,970 217,427
220,970 217,427
2020 2019

217,933 131,329
217,933 131,329
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2020 2019
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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(a

(b

(c

(@

(e

2020

2020

HKD USD

2019 12 31

2019 12 31

HKD

USD HKD
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31

220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000

220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000

214,732 214,732 25,573 25,573
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
949,732 949,732 760,573 760,573

2020 2019
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
2020 2019
107,093 105,756
107,093 105,756

2020 12 31
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2020 12 31

16

17

2021

10
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Cradd Suicse Managemen] {Cnyeaen) Limilad
Fimancaal sinfements for the year ended 57 December 2050

Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

USD Fﬁﬁmv 2020 2019

R e e S A T T
= of which interast income from instruments at amorlized cost 16,025 34,534
Met interest income 4 16,025 34,534

Senvicefesincome T B Ea0000 215,000
Othar loss T
Mat revenuas 236,025 249,513

‘General, adminisbative and other operaing expenses B (111,476) (143,734)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 124,545 105,773

“Profit befare tax 124,543 105,779

Ir:mna:taocsxpmse S R T e S
Profit after tax 124,549 105,779

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financial staterments.
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Crodd Sesso Managemont (Cayma) Limifod

Holes o Fimancial stfemants for the year ended 51 Deceraber 2000

Statement of Financial Pasition as at 31 December 2020

USD an 2020 2019
IR D S S A
Cash and due from banks 2] 1,643,795 1,438,186
threrassetsm??{!ﬁ'i'ﬂ?ﬁ,ﬂfﬂ?
Total assets 1,864,766 1,653,613
Liabilities s, T
Ohher lahilities 10 17,833 131,309
Total liabilities 217,933 131,329
Shareholders’ equity e
ke ol NSRS B LR ) S 735,000 735,000
Retained eamings 911,853 787 o84
Total shareholders’ aquily 1,646,833 1,522,284
Total liabilities and sharaholders” aguity 1,864,766 1,663,613

Approved and authonsed for issue by the board of direciors on 10 June 2021

Director

B St T e Tt

Brian Burkhalder

The accomparnying noles form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cranht Sumsce Managemenf (Cayman) Limifsd
Modses & Finaescial slafements o i v anded 3 Decemnday S000

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Share Fetained
usD capital  aarnings Total
2020 s p—
BalanceattJanwary . 735000 787,284 1522284
Profit for the year —- 124545 124,549
Balance at 31 December 735,000 911,833 ‘I.ﬁ*ﬁ.ﬁs

2019
(Balanceat 1Janvary | 7735000 681,505 1,416,505
Profit for the year — 108,779 105,778
Balance at 31 December 735,000 787,284 1,522,284

The accompaming notes form an integral part of these financial statemeants.

168/218



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Crpcdt Suesse Mansgemensd {Cayman) Lended
fints fo Financial stafemants for tha yuar sngnd 31 Decenibor 2020

Staterment of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Rtornce 2020 2018
Uso ko Rloda
Cash flows from operating activities
Prafit for the year 104 549 106,779

Adjustments to reconcile nat profit to net cash
_generated from operating activities

Man-cash items included in net profit before

tax and other Mlﬂimmﬂ
WEStINCOME | o riieenisrersssisssssnaboressereiiineenn e VE020).  (34.504)
Oither Loss = "

Cash generated from operating activities
before chenges in operaling assets and

liabilities 108,524 71.266
Net (increase) in operating agsets:

Ofher assets I - 7 R e
Net (increase) in cperating assets (3.543) {10,575)
Metincrease in operaling abiltles: s
Oher liabites 86,604 127 504
MNet increate In opseating labBilles | ... . coseainann BREM o o 127,584
interest income receied 4 16,025 3‘#535 )
MNet cash generated from eperating activity 207,610 222,819
Met increase in cash and cash eguivalents 207,610 222,819
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,435,186 1,213,367
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,736 1,436,186
Cash ard due from banks ) 1,543, 706 1,436,186
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,188

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements.
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Crarcht Suinse Maragarment (Oepman) Limided
et o Fremeind pledpmanly Gy Sha pear anded 31 Decabar 2000

Motes to the financial statements
1.  Principal activities

Cradit Suisse Maragement (Cayman) Limited (the "Company®) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
wiilh limited Fabiliby. The Compary's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration
and management of assets in trusts. The Company's registered office ls c/o Maples Coporate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayran lzlands,

2.  Significant Accounting Policies
(a)  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applcable Intematonal
Financial Reporing Standards (FRSs"), which collective term includes all apolicable indridual
International Financlal Reporling Standards, Intermational Accoucting Standards {1ASs") and
Interpretations issued by Infernational Accounting Standards Board (ASS"). A summary of the
significant accourting pebcies adopled by the Compary is set cut beloa,

{h) Basis of preparation of the financial statemants
The measurernent basis used in the preparation of Iha finandal statements is the historical cost basis,

the preparation of fimancial statements in canformidy with IFRSs requires management to make
judgaments, estimates ard assumplions that affect the application of policies ard reported amounts
of assets, habilities, income and axpenses. The eslimates and assocated assumptions are based on
historical experience and varous other factors thal are befeved to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the resulls of which form the basis of making the judgements about canying values of
assets and liabilities that are nol readlly apparent from olher sources, Actual results may differ fram
these esfimates.

The estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis, Revisions to
accouniing estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised f the revision
affects only that period, or in the percd of the revision and fulure perods if the revision affects bath
cument and future periods,

(c)  Foreign currency

The Company's funciional and presentation currency is United States Dellars ("USDT). Foreign
currency fransactions diring the year are translated ints USD at the foregn eschange rates riling at
the transaction cates. Monetary assefs and liabilites denominaled in foreign currencias are franslated
inta USE at the foraign exchange rales nuling al the end of the reporting period.  Exchange gains and
faszes ane recognised in the profit or loss,

Mon-monetary assets and llabdbties that are measured in terms of historical cost in & foreign currency
are translated Inte USO using the foreign exchange rates rding at the transaction dales. Mon-
monetary assets and labilties denominated in forelgn currencies thal ase staled at fair value are
translated using the foceign exchangs rales rufing at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.
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Crackd Sitse Managennt (Capnan) Limied
Ioclts o Feancal slatermanis for e poar anded 31 Discember 2000

2, Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
{d)y  Cash and cash equivalents

{ash &nd dus from banks comprise cash at bark and on hand with banks, and shert-term, highly
liquid imvestments that are readiy comvertible inte known ameunts of cash and whish are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, Faving been within three manths of maturity at acquisition,

(a) Other assets

Other assels are iniflally recognised at fair value and thereafler stated al amodised cost less
Expected Credit Loss (ECLY) {refer to Mote 2{g)), except where the receivables are interast-free
boans made to related parties without any foeed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immatarial. In such cases, the recenables are staled at cost less impasment for bad and doubtful
debts,

i Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions. are recognised for labilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal
o constructive obligation arising as a result of 2 past event, it is probable that an outliow of ecenomic
benefits will be requived to setfle the cbligation and a relisble estimate cash be made. Whare the
time wvalue of money is materal, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expecied to seftle the obligation,

Whese it iz not probable that an outflow of economic benefits wii be required, of the amount cannot
be estimated refiably. the obligation is disclosed as a confingent llabilily, unless the prabability of
cutflow of economic benedits s remote, Possible obbigatons, whose existence will anky be confirmed
by the ccoumence or nen-coourrence of one or mare fulure events are also dischosed as conlingent
liabilities unless the prenabdity of autflow of econamic benefils is remets.

{g)  Impairment

The camying amount of the Compary's assets is reviewed al the end of each reporting periad to
determine whether there is any objective evdance of impairment. If any such obiective evidence
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estmated at the end of each reporting period. An
impairmernt less |5 recognised whenever the camying amount of an asset exceeds ils recoverable
amount. Impairment losses ane recognised in the profit or kass.

Undes IFRS 9, the impairmert requirernents apply primarily to financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The impaimment requirements zre based on a forward-looking expected credit loss mocded by
incorporating reasonable and supportable forecasls of fulure economic conditions avallable al the
reporting date. This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic facters affect
ECLs, which 15 determined on a probability-weighted basis,

(h)  Revenus recognition
Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Ihe Company and the revenue and
costs, if applicatie, can be measured refiably, senvice fee income Is recognised in profit or loss when
the investment maragement service 5 proviced,

] Expenses

All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an accreal basis,
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Criclf Sutcsa Managemen] {Cmman) Limded
Pl do Finaesciad sinlansnts for the year saded 31 Decantber 5090

2, Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
a4 Related parties

For the purpases of these financlal statements, a party i considersd o be refated to the Company If:
{a) A person, or a close member of thal persen®s family, is related lo the Company i that persoen:
{} has control or joint conlrol aver the Conmpany;
(1 has significant influence ever the Company; or
(i) s a member of the key management persannel of the Company or the Company's parent.

{B)  Anently is related to the Compary if any of the follawing conditions applies:

@  The enlity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and felow subsidiary is related to the athers),

(i}  One enlly iz an assodate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate oe joint
vanture of 8 member of a group of which the ofher entity is & member),

{i} Both enfities are joint ventures of the same third party,

{v} Oneently is a joint verture of a third party and the other entity iz an azsociate of the
third party.

() The enfity is a post-employment benefil plan for the benefit of employees of sitber the
Compary or an entily related ta the Compary.

{i)  The entity is contrelled o jaintly controlled by a person idertified in (2).

(vl A person identified in {a){) has sgnificant influsnce over the entily or is 8 member of the
ley management persannel of the entily (or of 2 parent of the endity).

Cloze members of the family of a parson are those family members who may be espected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their deslings with the entity,

(k)  Standards and Interpretations effective in the currant periad

The Company has apolied the following standards and amendments for the first time for Their annusl
reporting period commencing 1 Januany 2020
* Definition of Material ~ amendmenis 1o IA5 1 and 1AS 8
& Revised Conceptual Framewoek for Financial Reporting
The amendmants listed above did nod have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior perods
and are not expected to significantly affect the cumrent or fulure perods,

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are fisst effective for the curent
accounting period of the Compary, Mone of these developmends have had a material effect on how

the Company's resulls and financlal position for the current or prior periods have been prepared o
presented in Mate 2(k).

The Company has not applied any new slandard or inlerpretation thal is not yet effective for the
eurrent aceounting period (Nate 15),
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Craff Sigtase Miragemnt (Cinenan) Limied
MNodes o Finandial strfemends o e yoa andod 31 Docember 2000

Met Interest Income

usb 2020 2019
r_vlat Ir_ltl_!rai‘l Ir_tmm_a__ )

Interest income on cash and due from banks 16,025 34,634
Total interest income 16,025 24,534

Al the abewe inferast inoome on instruments are at amortised cost,

Service Fee Income

The principal activites of the Company are the creation of trusts and the admwinistraton and

management of assets in trusts.

Revenua represents investment management fee income eamed from fallow subsidlary as follows:

uso 20240 2019

Revenues i i

Total revenues 220,000 215,000
General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usoD 2020 2019
General administrative and other operating expenses »

OHher expenses — (34, 6648)
Barkcharges (1.189) (191
Directors’ remuneration  (107.093)  (105756)
Total genaral administrative and other operating expenses (111,478) (143,734)

Al of the above expenditures are payable to the Company’s immediate holding company ard the

immediale ho'ding company setties such expenditures on bahaif of the Compary,
Taxation

There are no taxes on income o gains in the Cayman lsdands and the Company has raceived an
undertaking from the Governor in Councll of fhe Cayman kslands exempting it from zll local income,
peafits and capial taxes untl 10 Oclober 2089, Accordingly, ne provision for income taxes is included

in these financial stalements.
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Mebas fo Financled stidamanli tor [ha yoor eodiad 31 Decambar 2020

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsored unconsolidled struclured antives

The Company considers itself the spansor of a structured antity when either #5 name appears in the
name of the structured enfity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation from the
market that the Company is assesiated with the struclured enfity or the Company was Invehed in the
design or et ug of the structured ently and has a form of imvolvement with the structured entily,

The below unconschdated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed annual
management fee of USD 5,000 (2018: USD B00D) s received bul no Interest is held by the
Company as at 31 Decembar 2020

US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors ©

.JapartPremlumFuﬂu'armdlmﬂmhunailmeslursUﬁb'i A L i e

----- T L S e d B b B ekl e o e m e S g A S R RS R T e

MEMYAM US REIT Inceme Fund (For Qualfied Institutional Investors Qniky)

Daiwa Brarilian Real Bond Fund (For Qualiied Instiutional Ivestors Only)
Nissay Japan Equily Active Fund (For Oualified Insttutional fvestors Onby)
AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Institulional Investors Only)

Japanese Gevernment Bond 17-00 Year Ladder Fund (For Gualied Institutional investors Only)
Australia REIT Fund .
Busralls REIT Blus s s

.............................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................

................................................................................................................

Tolio Marne CAT Bond Fund ™ """

‘Glabal High Dhidend Equity Premium Fund (For Gualified Institubional investors Gnb)
HOLT Eure Equily Premium Fund (For Cualfied Instfutional Investors Only) "
PIMCO Shaort Teom Incame Siratsg? Fmd

11
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Crad? Sezase Managemsnt [Cayran) Lintod
Moles bo Financial silemenly for B pear ended 31 Decombar 2020

Unconsolidated Structured Entities {continued)

F'ore-gn De.rm'rma‘.ed h‘-s.n AHL Smart Lwera.ge Etram-gy FLmd
S8l Pictet Asfs. H| rech "u"E"llu'_F.: If!.gnd
MJD Sh:u'l Term Bond Fund

by “'ne {unds were tennmated -::Iuanng 2000,

The Company has nel provided financial ar ether suppert to consolidated struchwed entities that it was
nat contractually required fo provide,

The Company does not cumently have ihe intention fo provide financial or other support to
uncansalidated structured entities that it is not contractually required ta preside,

Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivalants comprisa;

UsD 2020 2019
Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks 1,643,796 1,436,186
Total cash and due from banks 1,643,796 1,436,186

Other Assets and Other Liabilities

UusD 2020 2019
Other assets

[rberest and fees receivable FXET 2174927
Total other assets 220,970 217427
UsD 2020 2019
Other liabilities

Interest and fees payable 217,833 131,329
Total other liabilities 217.933 131,329

12
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Croght Suisse Managamant (Cayeran) Limited
MNates {o Finsncial stalemenis for fhe poar andled 3T Decambear 2020

11. Share Capital
(@)  Authorised and [ssued share capital

2020 2019
MNa. af usD Mo. of usp
shares shares
Authorised:
Crdinary shares af USD 1 each 1.000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid up:
Ordinary shares 735,000 735,000 35,000 735,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled 1o recaive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled o cne vote per share at general meetings of the Company, AN erdinary shares rank egually
wilh regard te the Compary's residual aesels,

() Capital management

The Comnpany's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern so thal it can cortinue to provide returns 1o sharehelders, by pricing
services commenswrately with the leve! of risk and by secuwing access fo finance at a reasonable
cost. As the Company is parl of & larger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and
policies for dslribution of excess capital may also be aflected by the group's capital management
objectives. The Company defines “capital® as including ail components of equaty.

The Company's capital structure is regulardy reviewsd and managed with due regard to the capilal
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adustments are made to the
capital structure in ight of changes in economic condiions affecting the Company or the group, o
the extent that these do nat conflicl with the directors’ fiduciary duties fowards the Company,

The Company was not subject to externally imposed capital requinesents in the cument period,

12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
Exposure to credst, lquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Compary's business. These risks are managed by the Campany's financial management policies and
practices described below.

(@) Credit risk
The Compary's credit risk is primarily attributable ta amaounrts due from group companiaes and cash at
bank. Credd risk |5 definad as risk that ohe parly to a financial instrument will cause a linancial boss to
arather party by failing to discharge an obligation. Management regularly menitors its risk exposure to
ensure that s credi rsk is kept to a minimal level. The maximum exposure to eredit risk is

represented by the camang amaount of each financial asset in the stalement of financial position after
ceducting any impaimment allowance.

13
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Chredgil Fuezse Managensaaf (Cayman) Limilad
MNotos o Financial stadernanis Tor the year anded 31 Dacomber 2020

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
Lbquicdity risk

The Company's poiicy is lo regulary monitor its Rquidity requirements fo satisty ifs confractual and
reasonably foresesable obligations as they fall due,

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the Compary’s financial kabilifies, which Includes all creditors
and acergals, ane an demand or undaled and are expacted to be setiled within fhree monihs,

Irterest rate risk

The Campany |s exposed o interest rale risk anly ta the extent that it eams bank interest on cash
and deposits. At 81 December 2000 and 2019, a change in Interest rates would have no direct
raterial elfect on the carrying value of the recognised assels or labdlities of the Company.

Foraign currency risk

The Company is axposed to foreign cumency risk primarily through certain transactions which give nse
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kang dollars *HKD®),

As the HIKD is pegged to the LSO, the Company considers that the risk of mowarenis in exchange
rates batwesn LSO and HKD fo be insignificant.

Fair values

The camying amounts of the Company's financial instruments caried al cost of amortised cost are
not makerially different from their fair velue as at 31 Decernber 2020 and 2019,

Material Related Parly Transactions

In addition to the tansactions and balances disclosed elsewhara In the financial statements, the
Cempary entesed into the following rateral related party transastions.

Related party balance sheet transactions

31 Decernber 2020 31 December 2019

Parent Fellow Total Pareni Fellow Total
Group Group
UsD Companies Companies
Assels
Oithr asssta - 20 BT 20 BE3 - 215,000 215,000
Total assels — 220,863 220,863 - 215,000 215,000
Linbilities and Equity
Sitecketlbe .cgwgR | o B B8 m. .BET
Share cagilal 735,000 - 735,000 735,000 - TI5000
Total Eakilities and
sharcholdars' eguity 248,732 = 948,732 760,573 - 760,573
14
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13, Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b} Related party revenues and expenses

IO 2019
Parant Fellow Tatal Parent Eﬂn‘w Tatal
Growp o
uso Companies Companias
Revenues
Sekemleeincome T 200 0000 = 215000 218000
Total revenues - FHLO00 30000 - 215,000 215,000

{c)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Remunaration of key menagemant personnel (USD) 2020 2018
Shorl-temm employee berafils 107,093 105,756
Totul Remuneration of key manegemant personnel 107,093 108,756

14. Parent and Ullimate Holding Company

AL 31 December 2020, the immediate parert of the Compary is Credit Sulsse {Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Heong Kong and ihe uiimate confrolling party of the Company [s Credd
Suisse Group AG, which is incorporated In Switzerland, Credit Sulsse Group AG produces financial
statements available for public use,

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yet affactive for the year ended 31 December 2020

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published thal are not mandatony for
31 December 2020 reporting pericds and have not been early adopted by the Company. These
standards are rot expected fo have a materiad mpact on the entity in the current or future reporting
perods and on foreseeable fulure transactions.,

16. Subsequent Events
There have been no matters or cecumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial peried,
which significartly aifected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Company, the resulis of
those operations, of the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of direclors of the Company en 10
Juime 2021,

16
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2021 100 976
Intertrust N.V.
MUFG Fund Services (Cayman)
Limited
2021
549
2021 781
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Credit Suisse International

2021 113 6,600 2,475 3,216

1990 1985

2500199 1990

2000 27

2006 16

Credit Suisse Group AG

El4
4QJ
1990 16
Credit Suisse AG
Daiwa Asset Management (Europe)
Ltd
2021 500,000 7,780
1987
2021 31
155.60
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KPMG

P.O. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-

1106 Cayman Islands
Telephone +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1 345 949 7164
Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy
Fund (the "Series Trust"), a series trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at January 31, 2021, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net
assets attributable to holders of redeemable units and cash flows for the period from March 23, 2020
(commencement of operations) to January 31, 2021, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Series Trust as at January 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period from
March 23, 2020 (commencement of operations) to January 31, 2021 in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trust's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to
cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

July 7, 2021
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Independent auditor®s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “ Company” ) set

out on pages 3 to 15, which comprise:

a. the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

b. the statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

c. the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

d. the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e. the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
( IFRSs” ).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ I1SAs” ).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (* IESBA Code” ), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

216/218



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditor®s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.
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Independent auditor®s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company-"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor"s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2021
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